Programs and Activities
Serving Minors
Best Practices



#### **Albany State University**

#### **Programs and Activities Serving Minors**

#### **Best Practices**

#### **Table of Contents**

The following documents are intended for ASU Minors Program or Activity leaders and staff to serve as best practices on key areas for creating and managing safe and effective programs where minors are participants. Program/Activity Administrators must recognize that all programs or activities are unique and these best practices may or may not apply equally to each program but will provide an overall guideline for best practices.

In addition to these guides, please review information on the Auxiliary Services/Events/Protection of Non-Student Minors website, <a href="https://www.asurams.edu/fiscal-affairs/auxiliary-services/events/non-student\_minors.php">https://www.asurams.edu/fiscal-affairs/auxiliary-services/events/non-student\_minors.php</a> and the legal affairs web site <a href="https://www.asurams.edu/legal-affairs/protection-of-non-student-minors.php">https://www.asurams.edu/legal-affairs/protection-of-non-student-minors.php</a> for additional information relative to policies and procedures for interacting with non-student minors.

Please direct any questions on these best practices or if additional guidance is needed, contact the Auxiliary Services/Events Office/Minors Compliance Office at 229-500-2884.

Accountability and Supervision	2
Communication	3
Discipline	4
Medical and First Aid	5
Medication	6
Misconduct Reporting	7
Parental Engagement	7
Residential Housing	8
Safety and Security	9
Screening	0
Staff Training	1
Transportation	2
Frequently Asked Questions	4

#### **Programs and Activities Serving Minors**

#### **Best Practices**

# **Accountability and Supervision**

Ensuring the safety of minors and always providing effective supervision should be the primary concern of program administrators. Implementing strong accountability procedures is a key step towards safe program operations. All program staff should be properly trained on accountability and supervision requirements.

- Having an accountability system to know where all program minors are is a baseline safety requirement for all programs. This may include the taking and re-taking of attendance, attendance logs, and the use of a buddy system particularly for field trips or during high-risk activities to include being around lakes, streams, swimming pools, and similar areas.
- Pre-program training should ensure staff understand their role in accountability of program minors. Training on both personal responsibility for accounting for minors assigned to each staff member and effective teamwork and coordination should be included.
- Staff supervision should be designed so that each staff member has accountability for an appropriate number of minors; this will better ensure effective scope of responsibility throughout the program. The American Camp Association recommends the following staff to minor ratios.

#### Standards for residential camps are:

- •One staff member for every five campers ages 4 and 5
- •One staff member for every six campers ages 6 to 8
- •One staff member for every eight campers ages 9 to 14
- •One staff member for every ten campers ages 15-17

#### Standards for day camps are:

- •One staff member for every six campers ages 4 and 5
- •One staff member for every eight campers ages 6 to 8
- •One staff member for every ten campers ages 9 to 14
- •One staff member for every twelve campers ages 15 to 17.
- Accountability is most critical at movement times (from one activity area to another, from residence hall or buildings to dining hall, at start and end of field trips). By name accounting is preferred to head counts, when possible; this limits possibility of incorrect count before movement.
- If a minor is discovered missing from the program, safety of the minor must be prioritized over individual or institutional reputation concerns. If the minor is not quickly located in the immediate vicinity, ASU Police (229-430-4711 or 911) and department leadership should be notified quickly; there should not be excessive delays in notifying authorities to assist with expanding the search. For camps in other jurisdictions, the program staff should be sure to

identify clearly in which county or city the event takes place, and have a reliable manner to contact public safety there. A lost child protocol should be included in your staff manual and reviewed as part of training. You do not want to wait until a child is actually missing to determine next steps.

- Not only are program directors/supervisors responsible for accountability of the participants, all program directors/supervisors are responsible for ensuring that all training and appropriate documentation is on file and readily available to the University and USG Audit Department in the event and audit occurs. ASU staff reserve the right to request to see the program file to ensure that the program is compliant with all ASU and USG policies and procedures relative to the interaction and protection of non-student minors.
- Ensure that each camp/program/activity where minors are participants has been registered appropriately on the Albany State University Registry for Programs Serving Non-Student Minors. See "How to Register a Camp" on the Auxiliary Services Web Site <a href="https://www.asurams.edu/fiscal-affairs/auxiliary-services/events/non-student\_minors.php">https://www.asurams.edu/fiscal-affairs/auxiliary-services/events/non-student\_minors.php</a>.

## **Communication**

Effective communication within programs is critical to safely run operations. Communication must occur up, across, down, and out to external organizations and individuals. A culture of continuous communication is key to well-run minors' programs.

- Program leaders should develop an effective communication procedure for program supervisors, staff, and volunteers to ensure all required information is relayed to staff in a timely manner. Through written and oral means information about program procedures as well as about minor participants should be thoroughly communicated to all staff. Program leaders should continually evaluate information and who needs to know it for successful program operations. Regular staff meetings and debriefs should be incorporated into all programs.
- Staff should be trained and encouraged to promptly communicate to program leaders with any significant program information such as incidents involving minors, medical situations, and other program incidents. Strong, continuous communication should be the standard of minors' program staff. Program leaders can be hampered in their oversight and decision making if staff do not practice effective communication.
- Communication across program staff is also a critical component of effective programs. A culture of information sharing should exist in all minors programs, with staff members ensuring that all important information is shared between program areas and work shifts.
- Communicating with external stakeholders is also necessary. Ensuring unit leadership is aware of significant incidents should be part of all minors program procedures. Also communicating to other University resources like the Equal Opportunity Office, University Health Center, Legal

Affairs, and University Police and Minor Compliance Office/Auxiliary Services 229-500-2884 when situations warrant. Parents/guardians should also be communicated with as needed to provide information on their child.

- Communications to minors, especially electronic communications on e-mail, text, or social media, should only be done using university or program accounts, only for programmatic purposes, and should include at least two staff members or the minor's parent/guardian. No one to one communication is permitted.
- A strong culture of continuous communication throughout all parts of minors programs is required to ensure critical information is relayed to all who need to know.

# **Discipline**

All programs should be prepared to handle situations where minors violate the Participant Code of Conduct. Minors, for various reasons, may act inappropriately, including disrespectful actions and words towards fellow program participants and/or staff or bullying behavior. Programs should have procedures in place to handle discipline correctly.

• In addition to a Staff Code of Conduct, all programs should also use a Participant Code of Conduct that outlines behavior expectations and consequences for failing to follow program rules. There is one available for use on our Resources page, <a href="https://www.asurams.edu/fiscal-affairs/auxiliary-services/events/non-student minors.php">https://www.asurams.edu/fiscal-affairs/auxiliary-services/events/non-student minors.php</a>.

This document should be signed by both minor participants and parents/guardians. This document forms the core of how disciplinary issues will be handled by program staff.

- Minors should be reminded of the Code of Conduct behavioral expectations of the program upon arrival. This can be accomplished by a mass meeting/orientation or in smaller groups. Ensuring all minor participants understand expectations is critical to a successful program.
- Staff should be properly trained on appropriate disciplinary actions that follow the Participant Code of Conduct. As noted in the Staff Code of Conduct, any discipline used should be constructive, not humiliating or isolating. Physical punishment is not an appropriate form of discipline and **IS NOT allowed**. Typical forms of corrective discipline include: verbal reminder of the Code of Conduct/program expectations for behavior, removing the minor from an activity temporarily, removal from future program activities.
- Minors must still be supervised during periods of removal from activities. Minors should not be sent to a residence hall room or any other area away from staff supervision. Having a disciplined minor sit to the side of the activity is an acceptable program procedure. Staff should

continue to engage with the minor and return them to program activities as soon as possible, reminding them that proper behavior is expected.

- Program leaders should be prepared for how severe disciplinary issues will be handled, including considerations for removal of a minor from a program and communications with parents/guardians. Review and decision procedures should be standard and fair across the program. Expectations and consequences should be included in the Participant Code of Conduct signed by minors and parents/guardians.
- •Programs should use appropriate corrective measures to help minors understand expected behavior.
- Signed copies of the Participant Code of Conduct as well as the Staff Code of Conduct must be housed in the program supervisor's program file.

## **Medical and First Aid**

All minors programs should have some degree of medical preparation and training as part of their program planning. At a minimum staff should understand basic first aid responses and have access to a first aid kit. More extensive training and plans should be implemented for residential or extended day programs.

#### **Training**

- Programs should ensure their staff have at a minimum basic first aid training (how to deal with cuts, scrapes, mild burns). Residential or week-long day programs should consider more extensive training, as well as programs that have higher risk of injury (athletics camps, outdoor activities).
- CPR/AED training is recommended for all or some staff for extended/residential programs. Several organizations offer CPR/AED training for a small fee including the American Red Cross. Programs should ensure staff awareness of AED locations in facilities.

#### First Aid

- Programs should either purchase/create their own first aid kits or have access to facility first aid kits.
- Annual reviews of the contents of first aid kits will ensure that items are replaced as needed.

#### **Medical Care**

• Plans should be developed for how medical issues beyond basic first aid will be handled. For non-emergency medical situations day programs should normally call parents/guardians to pick

up minors who need medical care; residential programs will need to develop plans to take minors to a local hospital for care.

- A best practice is to have a signed medical authorization form from the parent/guardian along with a copy of the family insurance card; this will ease the process of obtaining medical care for the minor. Programs should also have notification plans for parents/guardians in the event of a medical situation.
- Programs should develop plans for how serious medical emergencies will be handled including: who will provide care for the minor; who will notify medical authorities, program leadership, and parents/guardians; and who will transport. There should also be plans for moving other minors away from injury scenes and ensuring appropriate supervision levels are maintained as the medical emergency is handled. Do not transport an injured participant in a personal vehicle. Call for an emergency vehicle at 229-430-4711 or 911.

# Medication

Medication management should be considered for all minors programs, especially overnight programs where participants share rooms. This ensures the overall safety of minor participants by limiting the sharing or taking of someone else's medication. There are several measures programs can implement to ensure all medication is taken appropriately and that medication usage is recorded.

- Program administrators should develop a comprehensive plan for medication management for the program; if assistance is needed, contact the Director of Compliance for Programs and Activities Serving Minors at **roomreservations@asu.edu.**
- Residential programs should develop plans to collect and hold all medications (except emergency medications like epi-pens and inhalers, these should be kept on their person by minors). Ensure all staff know where emergency medications are kept in case they need to assist the minor.
- If programs do not have medical personnel on staff who are licensed to prescribe or administer medications, program staff will only hold the medications and provide the medications to the minors when they need to take a medication. At no time should a staff member handle a bottle of the individual minor's medication directly, nor should any staff member provide guidance on how or what medications to take. If the minor is unsure of the medication to take or correct dosage, program staff should contact the minor's parent/guardian for clarification.
- When any medications, including parent/guardian approved over-the-counter medications, are taken program staff should record on a medication administration record. This document should include name of the minor, type and dosage of medication, and date/time taken.

- Responsibility to take medication is the minor's. Program staff should be properly trained to assist the minor with reminders when a prescribed medication should be taken and ensure that the medication is available to the minor at the appropriate time.
- There are many medical and legal aspects to medication management that program administrators should be aware of; if assistance is needed, contact the Director of Compliance at roomreservations@asu.edu.

# **Misconduct Reporting**

Misconduct Reporting is critical to safe programming. It is essential that all program staff, participants, and parents/guardians understand misconduct reporting and the process to make a report. Staff especially should be observant for any potential misconduct within the program and vigilant in reporting.

- Misconduct Reporting can be as significant as reports of abuse to reports of inappropriate language used during programs. Everyone who is part of your program should understand that any misconduct witnessed or reported should be made known to program leadership.
- All program participants and parents/guardians should be made aware of who to report misconduct to (this can be worded in program communications as "concerns about the program"). Provide a primary and secondary person to report to (in case the primary person is part of the alleged misconduct) including methods of contact like phone number and e-mail.
- All program staff should also know who to report misconduct to, including a primary and secondary program leader or other University official. Additionally, if misconduct is committed by minor program participants, staff should enforce the participant code of conduct via appropriate disciplinary methods.
- All reports of misconduct should be taken seriously and evaluated; depending on the type of alleged misconduct program leadership may need to contact the ASU Equal Opportunity Office, UGA Police (229-430-4711 or 911), or Legal Affairs for assistance.

# **Parental Engagement**

Effective communication and interaction with parents/guardians should be a component of all minors program planning. Pre-program information, as well as updates during programs on significant incidents, are critical elements of successful operations. Effective parental engagement will result in much smoother program operations.

- Program leaders should develop information to provide to parents/guardians prior to program start. This information should include: general itinerary, residential housing procedures, if applicable, program rules and guidelines, participant code of conduct, and contact information for program leaders. Ensuring parents/guardians have a good understanding of your program can limit parental questions and enhance engagement during the program.
- Programs should identify staff who will communicate with parents/guardians in the event of significant incidents. These staff should be properly trained in how to best communicate information to parents/guardians including details about their child and actions the program has taken to ensure safety of all participants. Program leaders must ensure the confidentiality of information about other minors in the program. If program leaders are unsure of what information to share, they should engage their program leadership.
- Program leaders also need to be prepared to handle difficult conversations with parents/guardians about disciplinary issues, inappropriate behavior, and removing minors from programs. Ensuring that all information is gathered first is critical; leaders should speak with staff directly involved in situations.
- Parent/guardian engagement is a critical component of successful programs. Ensure your program staff are prepared to correctly interact with parents/guardians during all phases of programming.

# **Residential Housing**

Many programs involve minors staying overnight in a university residence hall or hotel. Residential program planning and supervision are critical to program safety. Ensuring the overall well-being of minors during evening and overnight hours should be a key component of planning.

- Campus residence halls are preferred due to the ability to control access to the building and general greater safety of the campus environment. If hotels are used for minors programs, particularly if travel is included in a program, program leaders and staff need to be vigilant about security and maintain awareness of others near minor rooms.
- If rooming minors two or more to a room, they should be housed by age and each minor should have their own bed. Generally house minors the same age or within a year or two in age of each other. This will mitigate potential issues of inappropriate behavior based on larger age differences and should help protect against bullying.
- Residential staff should be housed in separate rooms but interspersed around the minors' rooms. This will allow staff to be close enough to resolve issues and be readily available to minors as needed. Ensure staffing ratios are appropriate based on ages of the minors.

- Programs should have well defined and explained rules for minors in the residential component of the program including: common areas that minors can use, off limit floors for males and females, and curfew times for being in rooms and lights out. Minors should be aware of consequences if they are found in off limits areas or leave the residence hall or hotel room without permission or supervision. These rules should be reviewed during program orientation with reminders throughout program as needed.
- Overnight hours are the only times typically when minors are alone with other minor participants without staff supervision. Staff need to be aware of the potential for inappropriate behavior at these times, including misconduct, bullying, and cyberbullying. All staff and minor participants should be aware of who to report misconduct to and how to report.
- If overnight housing is part of the program, then counselors or security officers must be employed at the program's expense to secure the areas during the overnight hours. There should always be persons available on site during the night to ensure participants adhere to program guidelines for overnight stays.

# Safety and Security

Programs should develop well planned safety and security procedures to ensure the well-being of minor participants. Safety and security can encompass many areas from accountability of minors to awareness of potential internal and external risks to program participants. Program administrators should develop effective plans, document plans, and train all program staff on their role in safety and security areas.

#### Safety

- Overall safety begins with a detailed review of all program elements to identify areas of risk, and then creating a plan for risk mitigation. This can involve many aspects of the program including program activities, movement between program areas, and ensuring continuous supervision. While all risk cannot be eliminated, unnecessary high risks should be addressed. Program changes can be made to provide the safest environment possible.
- Program staff should be trained to recognize areas and times of significant risk and to implement measures to keep minors safe. An inspection of facilities, equipment, and safety items before programs begin can better ensure overall safety; a mismatch between facilities and users is a common source of injury. It is critical to have detailed pre-program staff training, refresher training during the program on key areas, and a well-developed communications plan between staff and program leadership.
- All programs should have safety plans in place for events like a lost minor, severe weather response, evacuation of facility, active shooter/active threat, and medical emergencies. Program

leaders should develop plans for these situations and ensure all staff are appropriately trained and prepared.

• A strong safety-first program allows anyone, staff or minor participant, to raise a concern about safety. All potential safety issues raised should be considered by staff before continuing with program activities.

#### **Security**

- Since many of our programs take place on open campuses and facilities, program leaders and staff need to be aware of their surroundings at all times. If a potentially unsafe situation develops, staff should notify campus police or other appropriate authorities. Contact dispatch at 229-430-4711.
- Housing should be in secured campus residence halls. This will provide the best security during overnight hours. If housing in other facilities, like hotels, program staff will need to maintain heightened awareness of others in the vicinity of program minors.
- If overnight housing is part of the program, then counselors or security officers must be employed at the program's expense to secure the areas during the overnight hours. There should always be persons available on site during the night to ensure participants adhere to program guidelines for overnight stays.
- All staff and minor participants should know who to notify in the event of a significant safety or security event, including program and department leadership and, if needed, ASU Police (229-430-4711 or 911) or other emergency response authorities. For camps in other jurisdictions, the program staff should be sure to identify clearly in which county or city the event takes place, and have a reliable manner to contact public safety there. Program director should post emergency numbers of accountable staff in a visible location for participants and parent reference.

# **Screening**

While criminal history background investigations are a key component of staff hiring and are required by the Programs and Activities Serving Minors Policy, programs should also utilize other methods to ensure potential staff and volunteers are properly screened appropriate to the level of contact they are expected to have with minors. Effective screening options are provided below.

#### For Programs/Activities hiring staff

• Closely review resume and cover letter for experience working with minors. Ensure the applicant has the necessary background experience for the position.

- During the interview, ask questions about reasons for applying for position, focusing on motivation for working with minors and understanding of the unique responsibilities of supervising minors.
- Contact references and ask about prior experience working with minors and their impression of the applicant's approach to safely engaging with minors in their care.

#### For Programs/Activities working with non-hired staff (volunteers)

• Use a screening system to evaluate volunteers or other non-hired staff for their understanding of the requirements of working with minors and their motivation to work with a minors program.

#### For all Program/Activity staff

- Evaluate prior experience to understand level of training needed to ensure full understanding of minors protection role.
- Only permit fully qualified staff to work with minors; do not just fill a position, select the right individual to ensure your program is being managed safely.

#### **Both Groups**

• All persons working with minors, whether paid or volunteer, must have a satisfactory position of trust background check prior beginning work. Coordinate all background checks with the Human Resources Office of Albany State University as these background checks must follow the HRAP policies set forth by the University System of Georgia.

## **Staff Training**

One of the keys to a well-managed and safely run minors program is effective staff training. Program leaders must ensure that program plans and procedures are effectively communicated to all staff so that program safety is maintained at all times. Whether programs are for a few hours or weeklong, or residential, staff training should be incorporated into program plans.

- Program director/supervisors must attend an intensive Protection of Minors Training program in addition to online training required of all staff whether paid or volunteer.
- Program leaders can provide initial training before the program by utilizing a mixture of externally created online training modules, program-specific online training, and by creating a staff manual. This will allow staff to begin to learn and understand program requirements before arriving for the program event.

Program leaders need to ensure all staff complete the required trainings under the policy:

- -- Mandated Reporter (what to do if child abuse/neglect is seen or suspected)
- -- Protection of Youth Training
- -- Staff Code of Conduct

These are the minimum requirements for all ASU minors programs but should not be considered the only training required.

- In person staff training will differ depending on the scale of your program. Training for a two-hour activity will look different from training for a multi-week residential program, but all training should include some core components: accountability plan, Staff and Participant Codes of Conduct, Staff and Participant Orientations, emergency response procedures, general safety discussion, first aid/medical situations.
- For programs that run for multiple weeks, develop training refreshers on key areas like safety and security to ensure continued awareness by all staff. Be deliberate about setting aside time for these refresher trainings.
- Program leaders can develop well designed and safe program plans, but if that information is not provided to front line staff, the program will not run effectively and safely. Developing and implementing effective staff training is critical to well run programs.

# **Transportation**

Programs that provide transportation to minors should ensure they are following all ASU motor vehicle use requirements. Additionally, all program staff who drive or ride in vehicles with minors should perform their duties in a safe manner at all times.

• All program staff who drive vehicles on University business must follow the ASU Transportation Policy and Procedures set forth by the Facilities Department of Albany State University.

https://www.asurams.edu/docs/legal-affairs/policies/TransportationPoliciesandProcedures.pdf

- Program leadership or facilities staff should provide hands on training, especially if staff will be driving 12-passenger vans or larger vehicles. Many organizations are restricting use of 15-passenger vans for minors programs due to roll over concerns.
- Minor transportation should preferably be done in ASU vehicles; while personal vehicles can be used if needed for infrequent trips, personal vehicle use for minors should be minimized.
- Programs should have two staff members in each vehicle to follow the two adult guidelines while in the vehicle as well as having the ability to offload and park the vehicle away from the

offload location. Developing plans for movement and loading/unloading will ensure continuous supervision of the minors.

- Use of ASU and other buses is another option for transportation. If program staff will drive buses, drivers must have a commercial driver's license for larger vehicles and be approved by the Executive Director of Facilities Management. Ensure staff have good accountability before boarding and after departing bus. Have a process in place for accounting for riders when unloading and reloading the vehicles.
- Staff should operate all vehicles safely and follow all motor vehicle rules to ensure the safety of the minors they are transporting.

### **Protection of Non-Student Minors Frequently Asked Questions**

#### Frequently Asked Questions about BOR Policy 12.9

What is the purpose of the new Board of Regents Policy for Programs Serving Minors?

The Board of Regents passed the new policy regarding Programs Serving Minors to further our efforts to promote the safety and welfare of those who participate in these programs.

 What is the effective date of the new Board of Regents Policy for Programs Serving Minors?

The policy is effective for programs operating on or after May 1, 2017.

• What type of program is covered under this policy?

This policy applies to academic camps, athletic camps, after-school programs, workshops, licensed child-care facilities, conferences and similar activities which involve the custody and care of non-student minors which are conducted, hosted or sponsored by any USG institution.

• Does this policy apply to 3rd party organizations that use the facilities of a USG institution?

Yes, BOR Policy 12.9 Programs Serving Minors applies to outside organizations and groups that may use institutional facilities for programs serving non-student minors.

• Is a Facility Use Agreement / License Agreement required for 3rd party organizations that use institutional facilities?

Yes, institutions licensing, leasing, or allowing the use of institutional facilities by non-USG entities for programs serving non-student minors must include language in a binding written agreement requiring the non-USG entity to comply with institutional policies on background checks, training and minimum insurance requirements. In accordance with Board of Regents Policy 9.10.6.3, the form used for such agreements must be USG-approved.

#### • Does the new BOR policy apply to all minors?

BOR Policy 12.9 applies to programs designed to serve minors who are not enrolled as students. Institutions are still expected to have procedures in place to ensure best practices are followed for programs for enrolled students to include new student orientation. In this regard, each institution will maintain the flexibility to tailor its procedures to best suit the needs of their campus.

# • Do school field trips, private events and events open to the general public fall under the new policy?

No, non-residential field trips to a campus which are supervised by a minor's school or organization and do not involve overnight lodging are not covered by the new policy. It is expected that institutions will further define which contacts with non-student minors are not covered and that certain activities such as the following may reasonably be excluded

- Services provided by the institution's health clinic;
- Events or performances on campus that are open to the general public and which minors attend at the sole discretion of their parents or guardians;
- Private or personal events that occur on campus to include weddings, birthday parties, etc.
- Students participating in intercollegiate activities, i.e., athletics, visual and performing arts.
- Minors on campus for the purpose of recruitment by the University, i.e., campus tours and open house, admissions visits and tours.
- Minors on campus for the sole purpose of official athletic visits/prospects provided rules and regulations outlined by the NCAA are met.

# • Who is subject to the background and training requirements of the new policy? All employees, students and volunteers who work in programs serving non-student minors who are reasonably anticipated to have direct contact or interaction with minor program participants.

# • How often must background checks be performed on employees, students and volunteers working in programs serving non-student minors?

The frequency of additional criminal background checks for students, volunteers and employees is not specified in the new policy. Each institution is expected to tailor its procedures to adequately and appropriately address the risks of an employee, student or volunteer engaging in potential criminal behavior after the completion of a previous criminal background check. One of the factors to consider is whether students or volunteers are under a continuous obligation to report convictions. All current USG employees are required to report convictions to their institutional Human Resources Department within 24 hours of conviction in accordance with the Human Resources

Administrative Practice Manual – General Requirements. Also, relevant would be other checks performed annually or regularly to include the National Sex Offender Registry.

# • Who should I contact if I have questions about this policy or the institutional-level procedures required by this policy?

**ASU Contacts:** 

Executive Director, Auxiliary Services Martha Snow 229-500-2884 Martha.snow@asurams.edu

Events/Scheduling Coordinator Shanice Howard 229-500-2885 Shanice.howard@asurams.edu

Joel Wright Chief Legal Affairs Officer 229-500-3303 Joel.wright@asurams.edu

University System of Georgia Contacts:

Wesley Horne AVC Compliance, Chief Ethics Officer Office of Internal Audit, Ethics & Compliance

Office: 404-962-3034 Wesley.horne@usg.edu

#### What is the records retention schedule for documents related to youth programs?

Child and Youth Participant Records must be kept for 3 years after the participant reaches the age of 18. These are the records that document the participation of children and youth in programs sponsored by the institution. This series of records may include: applications, enrollment records, progress reports and assessments, immunization records, parental consent forms, activity records, and lists of attendees. The retention schedule for all USG records can be accessed at: http://www.usg.edu/records\_management/schedules/. Please note that not all records associated with a youth program must be kept until the participant reaches the age of 18 + 3. Other records should be kept in accordance with the retention schedule for that document, i.e. individual volunteer files must be kept for 3 years after separation, daily logs must be kept 1 or 3 years depending upon the type of log, insurance records must be kept 7 years, leases must be kept for 7 years after the expiration of the agreement, etc.

• What office should I contact if I have questions about scheduling an event at Albany State University?

ASU Campus Events/Scheduling Office 229-500-2885 roomreservations@asurams.edu